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City Administrator’s Office 

 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Tom Crawford, City Administrator 
      
CC: Derek Delacourt, Community Services Area Administrator 
 Craig Hupy, Public Services Area Administrator 
 Nick Hutchinson, City Engineer 
 Brett Lenart, Planning Manager 
 Michael Pettigrew, City Treasurer 
 Marti Praschan, Chief of Staff, Public Services 
 Shryl Samborn, 15th District Court Administrator 
   
SUBJECT: March 15, 2021 Council Agenda Responses 
 
DATE: March  11, 2021 

 
CA-2 – Resolution to Award a Construction Contract to DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 
for the Dunmore, Waverly, Weldon, Hartford Water Main Replacement Project 
($1,311,467.00) (ITB 4650) 
 
Question:  What has been the consequence of have “undersized” water mains in these 
locations? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  The existing water mains in this area are 6-inch diameter mains, which were 
the standard when the subdivision was constructed. The effective size, due to the 
tuberculation, is likely even smaller. Residents connected to the undersized pipes my 
occasionally experience reduction of pressure during high demand times. Also, the 
smaller pipes may deliver reduced fire flow in case of an emergency. 
 
Question:  Will these replacements have any spillover benefit to other adjacent 
streets/homes? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  Once the pipes included in this project are replaced with new 8-inch pipes, 
the adjacent streets may experience less frequent pressure reductions. Also, the new 
pipes will provide more dependable service in the area. 
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Question:  Please provide the full bid document submitted by Baily Excavating, Inc. 
(Councilmember Eyer) 
 
Response:  The bid submitted by Bailey Excavating, Inc in response to ITB 4650 is 
attached to this memo. 
 
Question:  Ann Arbor's RCP states that bidders must submit "Documentation as to 
employee pay rates and whether the bidder provides health insurance, pension or other 
retirement benefits, paid leave, or other benefits to its employees." In response to the 
question about health insurance, pension or other retirement benefits, paid leave, or other 
benefits, DiPonio simply stated: "All benefits will be paid per the prevailing wages on this 
project." What does that mean? How did city staff assess that comment? Further, did they 
submit the documentation as required? I don't see it in the bid. If not, shouldn't that have 
disqualified them?  (Councilmember Eyer) 
 
Response:  Staff does not know what the bidder meant by its response, but when 
prevailing wage requirements apply to a project, such as this one, the US Department of 
Labor sets the wages required to be paid to workers on the project.  Prevailing wages are 
set by wage determinations which set for different types of projects and workers.  Each 
wage determination  lists a cash portion and fringe benefits portion to be paid to each 
worker.  The fringe portion may be paid by providing the benefit directly to the worker, or 
by irrevocable payment to a qualified plan administered by a third party.  The fringe 
portion can also be paid to the worker in cash.  The response indicates that the bidder 
would pay prevailing wages including the fringe benefit portion, but it does not indicate 
how it would be paid.  The bidder did not submit any documentation, but as indicated in 
its response, it would pay the prevailing wages, including the fringe portion, as required 
by law.  It is unclear whether the absence of documentation of employee pay rates is a 
basis for disqualification when the bidder responded that it would pay prevailing wages 
as required. 
 
Question:  In response to "Whether the bidder participates in a Registered 
Apprenticeship Program (RAP) registered with the United States Department of Labor 
Office of Apprenticeship or by a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office of 
Apprenticeship, and if not, bidders program for assessing the skills and qualifications of 
its employees": DiPonio stated they do not participate in a RAP, and that "employees are 
assessed by skill level by their foreman or superintendent." Yet no documentation is 
provided regarding the training of the foremen or superintendents. Given this, how did 
city staff determine that DiPonio employees are properly trained and qualified to do the 
work? Just last week, another contractor, Lanzo, was responsible for 10,000 gallons of 
sewage spilling on Main Street and ultimately making its way into the Huron River. In 
their bid, they also stated they don't participate in a RAP. Why is this question not 
being considered a requirement, as the RCP outlines?  (Councilmember Eyer) 
 
Response:  Staff do not evaluate the qualifications and skills of bidders as part of the ITB 
process for a number of reasons.  The ITB question referenced asks whether the bidder 
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has a registered apprenticeship program, and if not, to “provide details on how your 
organization assess the skills and qualifications of any employees who do not have 
master or journeyperson certification or status, or are not participants in a Registered 
Apprenticeship Program.  The bidder responded that it does not participate in a RAP 
along with a short statement responding to the remainder of the question.  The question 
is not written to require that a bidder participate in a RAP. 
 
Question:  How is this agenda item different from the last time it was on our agenda? 
(Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  There is no difference.   
 
Question:  Can you please include responses to the previously unanswered questions 
from the previous agenda on which this item appeared? (Councilmember Radina) 
 
Response:  Responses have been provided in this memo.  See also the privileged and 
confidential legal advice memo from the City Attorney’s Office. 
 
Question:  DiPonio Contracting, Inc. does not participate in an apprenticeship training 
program, which provides critically important credentialing, education & first-hand training 
experience to employees, according to their application/bid. Did the contractor 
responsible for the recent, February 22, spillage of 10,000 gallons of sewage on Main 
Street and ultimately into the Huron River participate in apprenticeship programs for their 
employees? (Councilmember Radina) 
 
Response:  The contract for the High Level Trunkline Sewer Lining project (the project 
on which the referenced spill occurred) was issued prior to the implementation of the 
Responsible Contractor Policy. However, on more recent bid submittals, the same 
contractor answered “No” to the question regarding participation in a Registered 
Apprenticeship Program. 
 
CA-3 – Resolution to Approve a Professional Legal Services Agreement with 
Washtenaw County for Public Defender Services ($206,305) 
 
Question:  How does the amount of this “local share” compare to past years?  Higher? 
Lower? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  The Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC) was created by 
legislation in 2013 after an advisory commission recommended improvements to the 
state’s legal system. (MCL §780.991) MIDC grants were first made available to local 
indigent defense systems in 2019. The local share was defined within the act as an 
indigent criminal defense system’s average annual expenditure for indigent defense 
services in the three fiscal years immediately preceding the creation of the MIDC under 
this act, excluding money reimbursed to the system by individuals determined to be 
partially indigent. Thus, the 2019 local share amount of $202,061.50 was calculated by 
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averaging annual direct expenditures for criminal defense services for fiscal years 2010, 
2011 and 2012.     
 
The local share amount in each subsequent year is determined by taking the base local 
share amount of $202,061.50 and indexing by 3% or the recent Urban Consumer Price 
Index (CPI), whichever is less. Compounding does not occur from year to year. In 2020, 
the local share amount was $206,506.85. For 2021, the local share amount is 
$206,304.79. There will be some variation in the local share amount from year to year. 
However, overall it is expected to remain relatively stable as the index is capped at 3% 
and compounding does not occur.  
 
Question:  Is there any data on how many people in our local criminal justice system are 
served annually with this contract? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  All grant agreements between the MIDC and the local units of government 
funding indigent criminal defense require quarterly reporting on both financial and 
programmatic data. The financial information is related to the expenses paid out of 
indigent defense funds (grant and local share amounts). The program data relates to how 
the local systems are adhering to the MIDC minimum standards. Each grantee is required 
to report information on the number of cases assigned to an indigent defender, number 
of arraignments conducted with counsel present, number of appointed cases where an 
expert or investigator was requested, and other items related to meeting the MIDC 
Standards.  An example of the program data for MIDC grant year 2020: 684 new attorney 
assignments (court-appointments) were made on 15th District Court cases.  Please note 
that number of criminal cases handled during the period was lower than normal because 
COVID-19 restrictions limited actively. 
 
Washtenaw County as the grantee to the MIDC funding is required to collect this 
information from all of the courts in the county, including 15th District Court, and report to 
the MIDC. In turn, the MIDC collects this information from each local system and reports 
it to the state legislature on an annual basis. 
 
 
CA-4 – Resolution Authorizing Water Capital Recovery Charges for 5 Maple Village 
Ct. ($2,696.00) 
 
CA-5 – Resolution Authorizing Sanitary Sewer Capital Recovery Charges for 5 
Maple Village Ct. ($5,982.00) 
 
Question:  Is this charge covering multiple condominium units?  How many units? 
(Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  This recovery charge is only for one condominium unit, Unit 5. The property 
owner is aware of the charge and has requested the installment plan as indicated in the 
resolution.  
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CA-9 – Resolution to Approve Downtown Street Closures for Restaurant and Retail 
Use 
 
Question:  Are the DDA/merchant associations planning any assessment or data 
collection during this year’s street closures? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  The merchant associations, as the organizations responsible for coordinating 
and managing the street closures, assess the closures on an ongoing basis with their 
membership. They have been and will continue to be in constant communication with the 
businesses to evaluate the effectiveness of the program. In addition, the Main Street Area 
Association recently released a public survey to solicit feedback about the closures: 
https://forms.gle/nTFoPp7suUbcX9dm6 

 
Question:  Does the City anticipate any formal (or informal) assessment of data collection 
during this year’s street closures?  (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  The City has not yet organized data collection activities for these street 
closures, however it is something that we could explore. 
 
CA-10 – Resolution to Approve Amendment Number One to Temporary 
Employment Agreement between Abigail Elias and the City of Ann Arbor 
($15,000) 
 
Question:  Given that this employment arrangement began with the temporary task of 
“training”, is there any expectation that any of our current full-time employees will ever be 
up to the task of handling Gelman matters?  (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  The City Attorney anticipates that Attorney Elias’ work will end with this 
contract. This is a unique situation in that Attorney Elias has legal/historical knowledge 
regarding Gelman matters (and actually some other, more technically complex Public 
Services matters) going back over two decades. Thus, to accomplish a solid succession 
training/transition, while also making sure necessary work got done, has required more 
time than might be expected, particularly given that initial successor resigned and the 
succession process had to be repeated. It is expected that some Gelman related matters 
will be handled internally by Attorney Wilhelm, while the City Attorney will supervise the 
Gelman litigation this year, as he has been working with Attorney Elias on the current 
litigation, along with outside counsel.  
 
Question:  Is there an anticipated timeline for when contracts like this one might not be 
needed (a timeline independent of the Gelman litigation)? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  It is hoped that with eventual proper staffing of the office that temporary 
contracts like this are not needed. However, circumstances and needs in the future can 
never be fully predicted. 
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DB-1 – Resolution to Approve the Issa Annexation, 1.24 Acres, 201 Scio Church 
(CPC Recommendation:  Approval - 8 Yeas and 0 Nays) 
 
Question:  The land use analysis table describes land to the west of this as “vacant” and 
also Township.  Is annexation of that adjacent parcel planned in the near future? 
(Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  This parcel is not currently scheduled for annexation by the City, nor has the 
property owner initiated such process. 
 
 
DB-2 – Resolution to Approve Lewis Jewelers Site Plan, 300 South Maple (CPC 
Recommendation: Approval - 7 Yeas and 0 Nays) 
 
Question:  How does the square footage of this site plan (24,525) compare to the 
structure that was previously on that site (when it was the Quarter)? (Councilmember 
Nelson) 
 
Response:  The previous building was 9,330 square feet.   
 
 
Question:  Given that the drive through was removed from this site plan, does the current 
site plan make any accommodation for pickup or delivery services? (Councilmember 
Nelson) 
 
Response:  While there are no dedicated parking spaces for delivery or pickup shown 
on the site plan, the property owner can designate certain spaces on the site for pickup 
or delivery service vehicle as desired.  
 
 
C-3 – An Ordinance to Amend Section 4.60 of Chapter 47 (Streets) of Title IV of 
the Code of the City of Ann Arbor 
 
Question:  Does our system of enforcement draw any distinction between residential and 
commercial properties, relative to fines assessed? (Councilmember Nelson) 
 
Response:  Under section 4:60 Removal of snow and ice from sidewalks, walks, and 
ramps there is no distinction in the fine for residential vs commercial properties. They are 
treated the same.  The current fine is $100 for the first citation, $250 for the second 
citation issued within the season, and not less than $500 for any additional citations 
issued within the season.  
 
Question:  Does the City have any data on the frequency of these violations (or repeated 
violations) at specific properties or otherwise track property owners who seem to be 
struggling with compliance? (Councilmember Nelson) 
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Response:  The City does not actively track property owners who appear to be struggling 
with compliance. Our current system, CityWorks does not afford such tracking. 
Complaints made through CityWorks (online) must be manually reviewed by the 
Community Standards Supervisor and assigned for investigation. Prior to issuing a 
citation, Community Standards workers can check to see if there has been a previous 
citation at that address during the current season, so the correct fine amount is designated 
on the citation. Below is a list of complaints made, notices and violations issued by month 
since January of 2017. When properties are observed to be in violation, a notice is affixed 
to the residence giving the resident time to comply with the ordinance. Citations are only 
issued after a notice has been ignored.   

 

January 2017 
Complaints – 27 
Notices - 6 
Code Violations -0 
 
February 2017 
Complaints – 132 
Notices - 91 
Code Violations-16 
 
March 2017 
Complaints – 49 
Notices - 24 
Code Violations -4 
 
December 2017  
Complaints – 349 
Notices - 90 
Code Violations - 12 
 
January 2018 
Complaints -372 
Notices - 292 
Code Violations- 63 
 
February 2018 
Complaints – 465 
Notices - 126 
Code Violations - 40 
 
March 2018 
Complaints – 40 
Notices - 23 
Code Violations – 4 
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November 2018 
Complaints – 7 
Notices - 7 
Code Violations – 0 
 
December 2018 
Complaints – 3 
Notices - 0 
Code Violations – 0 
 
January 2019 
Complaints -212 
Notices - 92 
Code Violations - 15 
 
February 2019 
Complaints – 450 
Notices - 286 
Code Violations – 47 
 
March 2019 
Complaints – 56 
Notices – 24 
Code Violations – 8 
 
November 2019 
Complaints – 347 
Notices – 209 
Code Violations – 23 
 
December 2019 
Complaints – 14 
Notices – 0 
Code Violations – 0 
 
 
January 2020 
Complaints – 342 
Notices – 299 
Code Violations – 44 
 
February 2020 
Complaints – 295 
Notices – 78 
Code Violations – 13 
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December 2020 
Complaints – 9 
Notices – 3 
Code Violations – 0 
 
January 2021 
Complaints – 298 
Notices – 173 
Code Violations – 29 
 
February 2021 
Complaints – 979 
Notices – 526 
Code Violations - 77 
 
 
DC-3 – Resolution to Commit Marijuana Excise Tax Rebate Funds 
 
Question:  Has the City Administrator already planned to earmark these funds to a 
different budget priority, and if so, to which program/department/priority may we need to 
allocate additional dollars in order to backfill the loss of these funds? (Councilmember 
Radina) 
 
Response:   The marijuana revenue was not budgeted since the amount was unknown, 
so there is no existing plan for expenditures in FY2021. Given the limited history of this 
revenue stream the City Administrator would consider this a non-recurring revenue in 
the FY2022 fiscal plan. 
 
 
 
 


































































































